
 
Mayor Joachim Pestinger, Presiding 

      
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 

 
2. REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. *Minutes of June 24, 2015  
B. *Payroll and Claims Warrants 
C. *Treasurer’s Report 

    Motion:  Move to approve Consent Agenda as prepared. 
 
4. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS - Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of 
new business are encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium 
and clearly state your name and address.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.  If you desire a formal 
agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-893-2219.  Thank you for attending. 
 
5. PRESENTATIONS  

A. Rainier Lane SE 100 Block Utility Improvements Construction Completion - 
JC Hungerford, City Engineer-Parametrix 

 
6. COMMISSION REPORTS 

A. Parks Commission 
B. Planning Commission 

 
7. COMMITTEE AND STANDING REPORTS   

A. Public Works – CM Drennen/CM Birkes    
B. Finance & Cemetery – CM Colorossi/CM Harman    
C. Miscellaneous activity reports, i.e. PSRC, Zoo Trek, special meetings, etc.  

      
8. OLD BUSINESS 

   A. *Emergency Evacuation Bridge Lead Agency Agreement - CM Drennen 
   B. *Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Scope and Budget - CM Drennen 

Motion: Move to approve the Scope and Budget Engineering for 
professional Services regarding the Emergency Evacuation Bridge System 

C. *Street Lighting Request Policy – CM Drennen  
Motion: Move to approve the Street Lighting Policy & Procedure as written. 

 

Councilmembers 
Position No. 
1. Tod Gunther 
2. Barbara Ford 
3. William Birkes 
4. Dave Harman 
5. Sam Colorossi 
6. Josh Penner, Deputy Mayor 
7. Scott Drennen 

 

 
 

Orting City Council  
Regular Business Meeting Agenda 

Orting Public Safety Building 
401 Washington Ave. SE, Orting, WA 

 
July 8, 2015 

7 p.m. 
 

Audience members are welcome to speak on any topic on the agenda after Councilmembers have finished their discussion. 

Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  1 | 2 

 



D. *Rezone – 801 Calistoga St. W. – Roger Wagoner, City Planner  
Ordinance No. 2015-968 • 801 Calistoga St. W. Rezone  
Motion:  Move to approve Ordinance No. 2015-968, relating to Land Use 
and Zoning; rezoning Parcel No. 0519311093; amending Orting Municipal 
Code Section 13-3-4: Zoning Map 

E. *2015 Comprehensive Plan – Roger Wagoner, City Planner  
        Ordinance No. 2015-967 • 2015 Comprehensive Plan  

Motion:  Move to approve Ordinance No. 2015-967, relating to Land Use                     
and Zoning; adopting amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 

F. *Financing Strategies for Additional Police Officers – CM Penner/CM Ford  
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
A. *Catch Basin Cleaning – CM Drennen  

Motion:  Move to approve Pipe Line Video & Cleaning as low bidder for 
catch basin cleaning in the amount of $24,979.17 

B. *DM Franchise Agreement – CM Drennen  
Resolution No. 2015-9 • 2015 DM Franchise Agreement  
Motion:  Move to approve Resolution No. 2015-9, entering into the first 
amendment to the franchise agreement between the City of Orting and 
D.M. Disposal Co., Inc. for waste collection services and the proposed rate 
increase effective November 1, 2015 

 
10. RECESS COUNCIL MEETING 

A.   Motion:  Move to recess Council meeting until the conclusion of the           
Transportation Benefit District Board meeting. 

 
 11. TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT BOARD MEETING (Jan/Apr/Jul/Oct) 
   A. Scott Drennen, Chair – Call Meeting to Order, Roll Call 
   B. Update 

C. Motion:  Move to adjourn the Transportation Benefit District Board meeting 
 
 12. RECONVENE COUNCIL MEETING 
      A.  Mayor Pestinger – Reconvene the meeting of the City Council 
 
 13. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
     A. Five minute break 
           B. Mayor Pestinger – Recess to Executive Session to discuss potential litigation, 

as authorized by RCW 42.30.110(i) and to discuss real estate negotiations as 
authorized by RCW 42.30.110(c). Council will reconvene at ____pm. No 
action will be taken in Executive Session or to follow. 

           C. Mayor Pestinger – Reconvene the Council meeting 
 
 14. ADJOURN 
    Motion:  Move to Adjourn. 
 

Note:  An * indicates enclosures or attachments 
Next Regular Meeting:  July 29, 2015 

Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  2 | 2 

 



 
ORTING CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 
June 24, 2015 

 
 

Deputy Mayor Josh Penner called the meeting to order with the flag salute at 7:00 pm in the 
Orting Public Safety Building.  Roll call found in attendance Deputy Mayor Josh Penner, 
Councilmembers Sam Colorossi, Scott Drennen, William Birkes, Barbara Ford (was not an 
active participant, listened in via telephone), Tod Gunther and Dave Harman. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
 
City Employees Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 

Bill Drake, Police Chief 
Stephen Vincenti, Treasurer 

 
Professional 
Representatives 

Jay Long, Attorney – Kenyon Disend 
JC Hungerford, Engineer – Parametrix 

 
Visitors (signed in) Sloan Clack 

Tim Tallon 
Susan Rigley 

Eric Corliss 
Leland Meitzler 
Arlene Dannat 

 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
Councilmember Colorossi moved to change the order of tonight’s agenda moving New 
Business before Old Business.  Second by Councilmember Harman.  Motion carried (6-0). 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 Councilmember Colorossi moved to approve the consent agenda.  

Second by Councilmember Birkes.  Motion carried (6-0). 
 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS:  
 
Susan Rigley, Orting 
Library 
Representative 

Reported to Council on what the library is doing and is hoping to 
update Council each month. She discussed the events that are 
happening at the library. Citizens can get the information on the 
website, Facebook and Twitter.  

  
Tim Tallon – Food 
Bank 

Reported to Council that the Food Bank is working on bringing in a 
mobile medical unit that will be staffed by medical staff, the mobile 
site will offer free medical care; offer free eye exams and may have a 
dental until traveling with them. He noted the mobile unit is called 
Mom and Me based out of Buckley. The Food Bank will distribute 
information to citizens; currently there is not a set schedule.  

  
Arlene Dannat, 
Orting, WA 

Spoke on behalf of Nicole Whites family (Nicole is the young woman 
who was murdered in Graham a few weeks ago). The family would 
like to do a memorial for her and hold it in the Park at the BBQ pit and 
– Ms. Dannat asked Council to waive the fee for use. They are 
looking at July 19th or the following Sunday.  



 
Discussion took place regarding waiving the facility costs - it was 
determined that it was not possible to waive the fees. A citizen (Doug 
Bishop), Councilmember Harman and Parametrix Engineer JC 
Hungerford offered to pay the fee. It was advised that the family come 
in to fill out the application to set the date for the memorial in the 
Park. 

  
PRESENTATIONS:  NONE 
                                                  

COMMISSION REPORTS:  (7:15) 
 
Parks Commission No report. 
  
Planning 
Commission 

No report.  

 
COMMITTEE AND STANDING REPORTS:  (7:15) 
 
Transportation  Councilmember Drennen deferred to action item on the agenda. 
 
Technology & Land 
Use 

Councilmember Gunther reported on the police survey being on the 
website and looking to expand it and send out to citizens; QR Codes 
on landmarks around the City; reader board options and discussed 
ADR Reader Board screens.  

 
 
NEW BUSINESS:   
 
DUI Emergency 
Response Costs 

Councilmember Colorossi – reported this task was delegated to the 
Court Administrator and asked her to discuss with Council. Court 
Administrator Woods reported that this is the cost that the City of 
Orting is due back from a conviction of a DUI; the money will be 
placed back in the General Fund or the specific Fund it came out of 
originally; this is a great opportunity to recoup the city it’s expenses 
on a DUI conviction.  
 
 
Councilmember Colorossi moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-966, 
adding Article C relating to Recovery of Emergency Response Costs 
to Chapter 1, Title 6, concerning Police regulations of the Orting 
Municipal Code.  Second by Councilmember Drennen.  Motion 
carried (6-0). 

  
Memorandum of 
Understanding ● PW 
& Staff Union 

Councilmember Birkes moved to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Orting Public Works and Staff Union.  
Second by Councilmember Drennen.  Motion carried (6-0). 

  
Memorandum of 
Understanding ● 
Police Guild  

Councilmember Drennen moved to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Orting Police Guild. Second by 
Councilmember Birkes.  Motion carried (6-0). 

 
2 | P a g e -  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  6 / 2 4 / 1 5  

 



  
Street Lighting 
Request Policy – 
(FIRST READING) 

Councilmember Drennen- reported this is a policy that came from the 
Transportation Committee, the policy addresses the insufficient 
lighting that comes from some citizens’ complaints and sets the 
standards for street lighting.   
 
Parametrix Engineer Hungerford, noted an error in document under 
Street Illumination, section B- it should be “areas”. 
 
After Council discussion, consensus was to make this policy a first 
reading. It will come back before Council for a second reading at a 
later date.  

  
Closed Record 
Appeal ● Rezone 
Request for 801 
Calistoga St. W. 

Deputy Mayor Penner read a statement that Attorney prepared: 
“The purpose of this closed record public hearing is to hear an 
appeal from a representative of American Concrete that asks 
the Council to approve its rezone request that was rejected by 
the Planning Commission following its public hearing on May 
4th, 2015.  Because this is a Closed Record Appeal the Council 
will not be taking testimony from the audience.  The order of 
the hearing will start with the staff report and the Planning 

Commission’s Facts and Findings.  The Council will be 
allowed to ask the Planner questions and seek clarifications. 

 
Next, the Appellant will be permitted to make their appeal of 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation to Council of 

rejection of the Rezone request.  Again Council will be allowed 
to ask the Appellant and the Planner questions and seek 

clarifications. 
 

After these steps I will close the public hearing and the 
Council will deliberate.  The Council may or may not choose 

to go into Executive Session according to RCW 42.30.110(i) to 
discuss with legal counsel matters relating to potential 

litigation.  If the Council goes into executive session it will 
come out of the session and take action.” 

 
Deputy Mayor Penner opened the Closed Record Hearing at 7:35 
pm 
 
Planner, Roger Wagoner displayed the City of Orting Zoning map for 
Council to view, and pointed out the subject property; he noted 
American Concrete (Canyon Creek) has been involved in the 
Comprehensive Plan and then in April the applicant applied for the 
formal rezone which went to the Planning Commission – the 
Planning Commission held a public hearing about the 
Comprehensive Plan and the notice of the zoning change, from that 
public hearing the Planning Commission recommended denial.  Mr. 
Wagoner noted the applicants prepared to speak to their reasoning, 
letter dated June 12th which describes their reaction to the Planning 
Commission Facts and Findings. 

 
3 | P a g e -  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  6 / 2 4 / 1 5  

 



 
American Concrete- Ms. Sloan Clack- gave the background on 
Corliss working with City on the Levee – keeping in mind the good of 
the City. At time of application we were unsure of what they wanted 
done there. She noted at the Planning Commission hearing, they 
were surprised by the reaction of the citizens.  Ms. Clack highlighted 
the concerns of the Planning Commission and referred to the June 
12th letter of response from Canyon Creek; she stated they are 
asking Council to approve the rezone with a conditional approval if 
that is what the Council chooses to do. 
 
Discussion took place regarding Residential Multi-Family and Urban 
Single Family allowances; Comprehensive Plan time frame; and 
code criteria.  
 
Deputy Mayor  Penner closed the Closed Record Hearing at 8:06 pm 
 
Council went through point by point the Planning Commission Facts 
and Findings alongside the Canyon Creek letter dated June 12th.  
 
Councilmember Birkes moved to approve the rezone request for 801 
Calistoga St. W. with conditions on non-multi-family attached 
dwelling and bring forward an ordinance at the next regular Council 
meeting.  Second by Councilmember Colorossi.   
 
Roll Call vote: Motion carried (4-2, Penner / Gunther). 

 
OLD BUSINESS:   
  
Ordinance No. 2015-
967 •  2015 Comp. 
Plan 

Deputy Mayor Penner announced there will be no discussion or 
action on this item tonight in light of the closed record hearing rezone 
approval. He noted it will come back at the next meeting for approval 
with a new zoning map. 
 

  
Memorandum of 
Agreement ● Pierce 
County Maintenance 

CM Drennen discussed the MOA for Pierce County. 
 
Councilmember Drennen moved to approve the Memorandum of 
Agreement with Pierce County regarding Road and Traffic 
Maintenance Services with amendment adding overlay.  Second by 
Councilmember Gunther.  Motion carried (6-0). 

 
Financing Strategies 
for Additional Police 
Officers 

Deputy Mayor Penner announced with the absent of Mayor 
Pestinger, he would like to bring this item back at the next regular 
Council meeting. 

 
Orting Emergency 
Evacuation Bridge 
Lead Agency 
Agreement 

Councilmember Drennen announced there is no new information 
and this time will be coming back to Council. 

  
 

4 | P a g e -  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  6 / 2 4 / 1 5  

 



 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: NONE 
 

ADJOURN: 
 Councilmember Birkes moved to adjourn. Second by Councilmember 

Colorossi.  Motion carried (6-0). 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________                            ____________________________ 
                Joachim Pestinger, Mayor                                                      Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 

 
5 | P a g e -  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  6 / 2 4 / 1 5  

 















































 

 
 

 
City of Orting 
City Council Staff Report 

 

 
Date: 

 
July 8, 2015 

 
Prepared By: 

 
JC Hungerford, PE 

 
Agenda Item: 

 
Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Scope and Budget for 
Professional Services 

 
 

Issue Synopsis: 
Requesting budget approval for professional services as 
described in the Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System 
Topographic Mapping, Utility Relocation Design and Right-of-
Way Acquisition Scope and Budget. 

 
Background: 

The proposed three-component Emergency Evacuation Bridge 
System as presented in October 2014 was adopted by the City 
Council. The project is now identified as the “Orting Emergency 
Evacuation Bridge System.” The project consists of a bridge 
over the state highway at Rocky Road, an evacuation 
designation of Rocky Road, and an ADA-compliant bridge over 
the Carbon River. Through a stewardship agreement with the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Washington 
State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) retained the 
approval authority for the final Bridge for Kids Alternative 
Analysis Report, which the Bridge for Kids Committee played a 
central role in developing. WSDOT determined that Pierce 
County had delivered a product meeting the intent of the federal 
grant funds. 
The Bridge for Kids Alternative Analysis Report is the first 
report of a total of three consultant-based efforts to successfully 
bring this project to 30-percent design, meeting the functional, 
aesthetic, and environmental requirements. The next project 
steps will be to proceed towards final design and construction. 
The City will assume the lead agency role, working in joint 
collaboration with the state, county, and federal agencies to seek 
out sources of funding to complete the project which includes 
environmental documentation, finalizing design, preparing right-
of-way plans and estimates, and construction of the bridge 
system. 
WSDOT has requested that the City of Orting move forward 
with right-of-way acquisition and utility relocation design 
associated with the SR162 Overcrossing Bridge. 
 



 
Policy Options: 

Approve or do not approve scope and budget for professional 
services associated with the Orting Emergency Evacuation 
Bridge System Topographic Mapping, Utility Relocation Design 
and Right-of-Way Acquisition. 

 
Analysis: 

Parametrix will provide engineering services in order to 
complete topographic surveying, right-of-way plans, property 
owner negotiation assistance, utility relocation design, prepare a 
SEPA checklist, and optional completion of grant applications.   
All funds for this effort will be reimbursed through the existing 
WSDOT SR162 Overcrossing Grant.  All effort associated with 
this scope and budget are solely related to the SR162 
Overcrossing Bridge 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

Fund(s): SR162 Overcrossing WSDOT Grant 

 Expenditure Required:  $82,621 

 Amount Budgeted:  $0 

 Additional Appropriation Required:  $0 

 
Policy Questions: 

None 
 

Committee 
Recommendation: 

N/A 

 
Staff 

Recommendation: 

 
Recommend Approval 

 
Attachments: 

Scope and Budget for professional design services 

 



 

 

City of Orting  216-1711-020 (3003)

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 1 July 2015

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition  

Scope of Work  
 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

City of Orting 

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition 

Founded in 2002, the Bridge for Kids non-profit organization was awarded grant money from the state and 

federal government of nearly $2.4 million to complete a feasibility study, and eventually design a more effective 
evacuation route off the valley floor. Pierce County Public Works administered the design process and funds. The 
engineering firm, BergerABAM was contracted to design the evacuation route and structures needed to meet 

ADA compliance and the 40-minute criteria requirements. 

The proposed three-component Emergency Evacuation Bridge System as presented in October 2014 was adopted 
by the City Council. The project is now identified as the “Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System.” The 

project consists of a bridge over the state highway at Rocky Road, an evacuation designation of Rocky Road, and 
an ADA-compliant bridge over the Carbon River. Through a stewardship agreement with the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) retained the approval 

authority for the final Bridge for Kids Alternative Analysis Report, which the Bridge for Kids Committee played a 
central role in developing. WSDOT determined that Pierce County had delivered a product meeting the intent of 

the federal grant funds. 

The Bridge for Kids Alternative Analysis Report is the first report of a total of three consultant-based efforts to 
successfully bring this project to 30-percent design, meeting the functional, aesthetic, and environmental 

requirements. The next project steps will be to proceed towards final design and construction. The City will 
assume the lead agency role, working in joint collaboration with the state, county, and federal agencies to seek 
out sources of funding to complete the project which includes environmental documentation, finalizing design, 

preparing right-of-way plans and estimates, and construction of the bridge system. 

Task 1 – Project Management and Administration 

Objectives 

Work under this task includes time to administer and coordinate the various project elements that will be ongoing 
throughout all phases of the project. This work includes: 

• Preparation of a scope and budget for engineering services to provide a framework for completion of the 

project in a logical and efficient manner. 

• Coordination, correspondence, and review meetings with City of Orting staff. 

• In-house project administration, scheduling, and direction of project staff. 

• Preparation of monthly progress reports (assume three). 

• Monthly design meetings with City of Orting Council Committee (assume eight). 

Deliverables 



 

SCOPE OF WORK (continued) 
 

 

City of Orting  216-1711-020 (3003)

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 2 July 2015

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition  
 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Monthly progress letters. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence and letters. 

• Maintaining project files. 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• The engineering services phase of the project will last 6 months. 

Task 2 – Topographic Survey 

Objectives 

To provide topographic mapping and prepare a base map identifying right-of-way, parcel lines, existing conditions 
and improvements at the intersection of SR 162 and Rocky Road to support design efforts for Bridge for Kids.  

This task will include review of the video and inspection report produced by Michels Corporation for the Eldredge 

Avenue sanitary sewer main. A spreadsheet of problem areas will be produced. 

Limits 

The mapping area lies at the intersection of SR 162 and Rocky Road and includes portions of the Foot Hills Trail, 

SR 162 (WSDOT ROW), the north limits of Rocky Road abutting the plat of Village Crest, and the northerly portion 
of Tax Parcel No. 051930-1018 abutting the southerly limits of Rocky Road. The easterly limits of the mapping 
area will terminate at the easterly limits of the proposed SR 162 pedestrian crossing. 

Topography Survey 

Horizontal and vertical control will be established throughout the site. Mapping will be performed within the 
above-described limits and include but not be limited to curb gutter and sidewalks, edge of pavement, signs, 

structures abutting the right-of-way, visible utilities including services, and sufficient ground shots to generate 
1-foot contours. Storm and sanitary structures will be opened and measurements taken to identify size, type, and 

invert elevation of all visible pipes.  

Right-of-way and parcel lines will be based upon available county records, including assessor maps, plats and 
recorded survey drawings.  

Assumptions 

This assumptions for this task include: 

• Horizontal control NAD 83/2011 per GPS observations and the WSRN network. 

• Vertical control NAVD 88 per GPS observations and the WSRN network.  

• The City will locate all City-owned utilities prior to the topographic survey. Should potholing be required, 
the City will provide this service by contracting with a potholing company. 



 

SCOPE OF WORK (continued) 
 

 

City of Orting  216-1711-020 (3003)

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 3 July 2015

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition  
 

Schedule 

The field survey and mapping will be completed, and the resulting survey base map will be delivered to the City 

on an agreed-upon schedule. 

Deliverables 

Deliverables for this task include: 

• Topographic base map in AutoCAD Civil 3D release 2012. 

Task 3 – Right-of-Way Acquisition 

Objectives 

This task will include assisting the City of Orting with the acquisition of the right-of-way required to construct the 

SR 162 pedestrian crossing as designed by BergerABAM. Parametrix will utilize the design files provided by Pierce 
County to determine the limits of properties to be acquired. Right-of-way plans will be produced for use by the 

City for negotiations with property owners. Assistance with property-owner negotiations will be provided as well. 

Approach 

Parametrix will utilize the topographic survey files, along with the design files provided by Pierce County, to 

produce right-of-way plans. 

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Right-of-way plans to consist of two 20-scale plan sheets (6 copies, 8.5 by 11 inches). 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• Design files provided by Pierce County are accurate and consistent with survey data collected by 

Parametrix. 

• One review meeting with the City will be sufficient. All City comments will be provided at this meeting, 
and addressed in the final documents. 

Task 4 – Utility Relocation Design 

Objectives 

This task will include the utility relocation design and preparation of a complete set of Contract Documents. The 

following utilities are within the footprint of the SR 162 overcrossing: 

• Six-inch City of Orting sanitary sewer force main. 

• Eight-inch City of Orting sanitary sewer force main. 

• Twelve-inch City of Orting ductile iron waterline. 

• Puget Sound Energy gas line. 



 

SCOPE OF WORK (continued) 
 

 

City of Orting  216-1711-020 (3003)

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 4 July 2015

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition  
 

• Puget Sound Energy overhead power. 

• Buried communications. 

Parametrix will provide effort required for the design of the City of Orting utility relocation, as well as coordinate 
with the other utility companies on the relocation of privately-owned utilities. 

Approach 

Parametrix will utilize the topographic survey files, along with the design files provided by Pierce County, to 
produce utility relocation Contract Documents. 

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Utility relocation plans to consist of six 20-scale plan and profile sheets, as well as necessary details, 
legends, and cover pages (6 copies, 8.5 by 11 inches). 

• Project Contract Documents. 

• Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Cost. 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• Design files provided by Pierce County are accurate and consistent with survey data collected by 
Parametrix. 

• Design of relocated privately-owned utilities will be provided by each utility owner, not Parametrix. 

Parametrix will coordinate with private utility owners. 

• The City of Orting will provide as-builts, available for all City-owned utilities. 

• One review meeting with the City will be sufficient. All City comments will be provided at this meeting, 
and addressed in the final documents. 

Task 5 – Permitting 

Objectives 

Parametrix will provide a completed SEPA Checklist and submit for agency review. 

Approach 

A SEPA Checklist will be completed by Parametrix staff, if needed, for open-cut construction. 

Deliverables 

The deliverable for this task includes: 

• SEPA Checklist for review, processing, and advertisement. 



 

SCOPE OF WORK (continued) 
 

 

City of Orting  216-1711-020 (3003)

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System Topographic Mapping, 5 July 2015

Utility Relocation Design, and Right-of-Way Acquisition  
 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• The City of Orting will be the lead agency in reviewing the SEPA checklist. A determination of 

non-significance or mitigated determination of non-significance is anticipated. If a mitigated 

determination of non-significance results from the SEPA review, revisions to this scope of work may be 

necessary to meet the mitigation requirements. 

• Parametrix will coordinate with the City Clerk on advertisement of the SEPA notification. 

Task 6 – Grant Application (as approved separately) 

Objectives 

Parametrix will provide services to seek and apply for grant funds for the Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge 

System, SR 162 Overcrossing. 

Approach 

Services will be provided to complete grant applications and follow-up effort such as presentations in order to 

secure grant funding for the SR 162 Overcrossing project as part of the Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge 

System project. Each grant application shall be approved by the City Administrator. 

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task may include: 

• Complete grant applications. 

• Presentations to funding committees as required by potential funding sources. 

• Grant management of successful applications. 

Assumptions 

Following is the assumption for this task: 

• The fee shown for this task is an estimate. Should a grant application or applications require further 

effort, an amendment to this task will be required. 



Client: City of Orting

Project: Emergency Evacuation Bridge System

Project Number: 216-1711-020 Phase 3003

Jo
h

n
 C

. 

H
u

n
g

e
rf

o
rd

A
p

ri
l D

. 
W

h
it

ta
ke

r

Sh
a

ri
 M

o
rg

a
n

M
a

llo
ry

 L
. 

M
ill

e
r

P
a

ig
e

 M
. 

La
w

re
n

ce

M
ic

h
a

e
l S

. 
P

h
e

lp
s

D
a

vi
d

 A
. 

Ir
o

n
m

o
n

g
e

r

St
e

ve
n

 N
. 

Sh
a

rp
e

Sc
o

tt
 D

. 
Sp

e
e

s

R
a

n
d

o
lp

h
 S

. 

R
a

ym
o

n
d

R
ic

k 
H

e
rm

e
s

Je
n

n
if

e
r 

L.
 D

vo
ra

k

Sr
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

Sp
e

ci
a

lis
t

Sr
 P

ro
je

ct
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ta

n
t

E
n

g
in

e
e

r 
IV

E
n

g
in

e
e

r 
I

Sr
 P

la
n

n
e

r

Sr
 S

u
rv

e
yo

r

C
A

D
D

 T
e

ch
 L

e
a

d

Su
rv

e
yo

r 
II

I

Sr
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r

Sr
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
n

t

Sr
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r

Labor Rates: $170.00 $110.00 $105.00 $145.00 $100.00 $155.00 $150.00 $125.00 $110.00 $180.00 $190.00 $170.00

Phase Task Description Labor Dollars Labor Hours

3003 Emergency Evac. Bridge System $81,660.00 634 138 8 8 80 320 8 8 8 8 8 16 24

01    Project Managment $16,760.00 104 80 8 8 8

02    Topographic Survey $3,080.00 24 8 8 8

03    Right of Way Acquisition $11,960.00 88 16 8 40 24

04    Utility Relocation Design $38,920.00 320 32 72 200 16

      Sanitary Sewer FM $17,200.00 152 8 16 120 8

      Watermain $13,200.00 112 8 16 80 8

      Private Utility Coordination $8,520.00 56 16 40

05    Permitting $5,240.00 48 40 8

06    Grant Application $5,700.00 50 10 40

Labor Totals: $81,660.00 634 138 8 8 80 320 8 8 8 8 8 16 24

$23,460.00 $880.00 $840.00 $11,600.00 $32,000.00 $1,240.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $880.00 $1,440.00 $3,040.00 $4,080.00

Amount

$550.00

$550.00

Amount

$125.00

$184.00

$102.00

$411.00

$82,621.00

Mileage

Survey Equipment Public

Expense Total:

Project Total:

Applied Professional Services Inc

Subconsultant Total:

DIRECT EXPENSES:

Description

In-House Copies

SUBCONSULTANTS

Subconsultant Name



 

 
 

 
City of Orting 
City Council Staff Report 

 
Date: 

 
July 8, 2015 

 
Prepared By: 

 
Mark Bethune 

 
Agenda Item: 

 
Street Lighting Policy and Procedure 

  

 
 

Issue Synopsis: 
The City lacks a comprehensive street lighting policy and procedure. 

 
Background: 

The City has received requests from citizens for additional street lighting to 
provide security.  Historically the city has used the Illuminating Engineer 
Society of North America’s (IES) recommended lighting level of service for 
developments.  Street lighting is normally for traffic and pedestrian safety.  
Security against crime has been an individual homeowner responsibility with 
many options available for additional lighting on their property. There is no 
approved process for a citizen to request additional street lighting.   

 
Policy Options: 

Approve, amend, deny 

 
Analysis: 

 It has become necessary to establish a city street lighting policy and 
procedure.  The Transportation Committee has been working on this subject 
for about a year.  The attached policy and procedure are the culmination of 
this work.  PSE is willing to install additional street lighting for an individual 
customer but will charge them for the installation and monthly energy use. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fund(s): NA 

  
Expenditure Required: NA 

  
Amount Budgeted: NA 

  
Additional Appropriation Required: NA 

 
Policy Questions: 

See above 

Staff 
Recommendation: 

Approve 

Transportation 
Committee 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

 
Attachments: 

Policy and Procedure 

 



 
 

Street Lighting 
Request 
Policy 

 
 
 
 
 

City of Orting 
Washington 

June 16, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



POLICY FOR WHICH ADDITIONAL LIGHTING REQUEST FOLLOWS 
CITY OF ORTING BUILDING STANDARDS & OMC 

I. Policy Objective
The objective of this policy is to provide adequate illumination on residential City Streets and to maintain
a standard level of service.

II. Requests
Property owners can request street lighting for public rights-of-way.  The guidelines below shall be
followed for deciding if a request will be denied or approved.

III. Approvals
A. Property owners requesting additional lighting shall meet with the City’s Streets and Transportation

Committee to propose the request.
B. Property owners requesting additional lighting shall petition a minimum of 90% from adjacent

homeowners within 500 feet of proposed light location, including both sides of the street and on the
same street as proposed light.

C. Approval shall be made through the City’s Streets and Transportation Committee and forwarded to
Council for recommendation and final approval.

IV. Guidelines
A. Intersection Lighting:  Street lights are warranted at all City street intersections.
B. Long Line Lighting:  This lighting provides street lighting between intersections.  If the distance

between intersections is more than 900 feet, a light could be warranted.  The spacing between lights
should not be less than 450 feet.  This type of installation can only be accomplished in an areas where
electric cable is available.

C. End of Street or Cul-de-sac:  If a street is 500 feet or more to its terminus a street light is warranted.
All cul-de-sacs shall have a street light at a location near the end of the cul-de-sac.

D. Lighting shall be placed in consideration to ensure illumination for the safety of both the pedestrian
and the automobile.

E. Where sidewalks exist on one side of the street only, street lighting will be placed on that side to
ensure illumination for the pedestrian.

F. Additional lighting on a street shall be similar in style and illumination to the existing lighting.
G. All requests shall be looked at on a case by case basis and shall follow these guidelines as close as

possible.
H. Requests that receive final approval from Council shall be given to Puget Sound Energy for

installation.  The lights will be installed as budget and time allows.

V. Maintenance
A. If trees/limbs in the street right-of-way are blocking a street light the City has the authority to trim the

tree branches or cut the tree down to maintain illumination and/or standard level of service.
B. If trees are on private property and are blocking a City street light, the homeowner of that tree will be

asked in writing to trim the tree in accordance of the Orting Municipal Code (OMC) Chapter 7,
Section 8-7-1 thru 8-7-3.  If homeowners refuse to trim the tree in a timely manner then the City will
take action to trim the tree and bill the homeowner accordingly. (OMC Chapter 7, Section 8-7-4)



Street Illumination 

Street Illumination shall require cut-off luminaire 

Street lighting systems design shall conform to the illuminating Engineer Society of North American (IES) 
Standards Specification for Roadway Lighting as Outline in (RP-8-00).   Puget Sound Energy (PSE) owns and 
maintains the street illumination system for the City of Orting. 

A. Plats and Short Plats, Commercial, Industrial or Institutional Property Development, Street lighting is
required for all public streets.  The street lighting design shall be reviewed and approved by the City
Engineer prior to final plat approval.  The cost of all street lighting shall be paid for by the developer.

The City will accept maintenance and power cost responsibility for the public street light system when a
plat is fifty percent (50%) or more occupied.  Until the plat is fifty percent (50%) occupied, the developer
is responsible for the maintenance and energy charges for the street lighting system.

Street lighting is not required on private streets within a plat.  However, a street lighting system
is encouraged.  The City does not install or maintain private street lighting systems.  On private streets,
all street light maintenance and power costs shall be paid by the developer, homeowner, or
homeowners association.

B. Existing Residential Areas.  If a resident or group of residents desires the installation of a new street
light they must apply to the City Administrator.

C. Commercial, Street lighting is required on all public street frontages.  The developer is responsible for
design, installation or relocation of new or existing lighting.  Commercial development shall
replace existing lighting systems on power poles with a new lighting system serviced by underground
power if the system will not conflict with essential distribution lines.

D. Ownership and Maintenance.  Puget Sound Energy (PSE) under franchise with the City provides, installs,
owns and maintains the street illumination system for the City.  Maintenance of the completed
lighting system is provided by Puget Sound Energy.

The property owner of homeowners association shall maintain private lighting systems.

E. General Considerations.

Existing street light systems that extend along the frontage of a new development project, or within the
limits of a roadway improvement project will not be generally required to be brought into conformance
with these street lighting standards, unless the project is required to install full frontage
improvements. If the City determines that existing street light systems should be brought into
conformance with these requirements due to special circumstances the applicant will be notified of
this requirement during the City’s development review process.



When required, the applicant is responsible for the installation of streetlights and all accessories necessary 
to energize the street light system consistent with Standards. 

For all new street light installations, the applicant shall coordinate jointly with Puget Sound Energy and 
the Public Works Department to prepare a street lighting plan for submittal to and approval by the City 
Engineer.  The type of installation shall be as set forth in PSE (IES) Standard Specifications and these 
standards.  The applicant can request that PSE design the street illumination system. 

Street lighting plans shall be designed and submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval prior 
to construction.  All lighting plans shall be prepared by a licensed engineer experienced with lighting 
design or by PSE (INTOLIGHT) Lighting Services).  Lighting plans shall pursuant to PSE (IES) Standard 
Specifications and these standards. 

The applicant shall coordinate with Puget Sound Energy for the availability and location of power sources 
for new light system. 

All public street light systems shall be accessible for public maintenance by a wheeled vehicle weighing 
twenty-thousand pounds (20,000 lbs.). 

All street light installations including wiring, conduit, and power connections shall be located 
underground.  Exception:  existing residential areas with existing above ground utilities may have street 
lighting installed on the existing power poles.  The applicant will be responsible for providing or obtaining 
necessary easements for underground power for street lighting systems designed and constructed as part 
of an approved development permit. 

As-built drawings on 22-inch x 34-inch or 24-inch x 36-inch mylar are required for all new or relocated 
underground street lighting systems prior to receiving a final occupancy permit. 

Street light circuitry will be provided with available voltage. 

The exact location of the power source should be indicated.  System continuity and extension should be 
considered. 

Particular attention shall be given to locating luminaires near intersections, at all street ends and at 
pedestrian and/or equestrian crossings. 

F. Illumination.  Calculations should include luminaire spacing, illumination level, uniformity ration, lines
loses, power source and other necessary details for the electrical and physical installation of the street
lighting system.

Design Standards 

A. Illumination Levels utilizing cut-off luminaires.

Street light illumination levels shall conform to the levels listed in the table below:



Illumination Standards Average 

Maintained Horizontal Illumination (Foot Candles) 

Road Class 
Area Class 

Residential Industrial/Commercial 
Private(Access) 0.4 N/A 
Residential (Local Access) 0.6 0.9 To 1.2 
Residential (Collector) 0.6 0.9 To 1.2 
Arterial* 0.8 1.2 To 1.6 

* Intersection lighting is required.  Street lights shall be placed in accordance with
the Standards listed below.

Uniformity Ration: 

6:1 average to minimum for private (access) 
6:1 average to minimum for residential (local access) 
4:1 average to minimum for residential (collector) 
3:1 average to minimum for arterial 

Average illumination levels at intersections shall be 1.5 times the illumination required on the more highly 
illuminated street.  Exception:  Local residential streets intersecting other local residential streets shall 
not require 1.5 times the illumination at other intersections, provided that one luminaire is placed at the 
intersection. 

At signalized intersections, all signal poles shall include a street light.  Lighting levels at these locations 
may be higher than the criterial listed above. 

B. Luminaires shall be cut-off

1. The following luminaires have been approved for use in the City of Orting;
Arterials:
Fixtures: PSE Hunter Green Flat Lens Cobrahead.  Wattage Based on Design.
Arms: Ameron Mo-AE Elliptical Arm.  Appropriate Arm Lengths Based on design.
Poles: Aneron 25” Mounting height Victorian 2 Fluted Green Concrete

Residential:
Fixtures: hunter Green King K823 Fanconridge Cutoff Optics Shallow Lens.  Wattage Based on
Design
Arms: Hunter Green Bishops Crook.
Poles: Ameron 13’, 15’, or 18’ Mounting Height Victorian 2 fluted Green Concrete.  Based on Design
& Location



2. All luminaires shall have clear lamps

3. All luminaires shall be cut-off high pressure sodium or LED Equivalent

a. 400 watt lamp = 50,000 initial lamp lumens
250 watt lamp = 29,000 initial lamp lumens
200 watt lamp = 22,000 initial lamp lumens
150 watt lamp = 16,000 initial lamp lumens
100 watt lamp =   9,500 initial lamp lumens

b. Lamp Dirt Depreciation factor (LDD) = 0.90
c. Lamp Lumen Depreciation factor (LLD) = 0.85
d. Combined LDD x LLD = 0.76

*NOTE: LED’S MAY BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY AS AN ALTERNATIVE TO REDUCE
ENERGEY AND MAINTENANCE COST.

C. Lighting Standards

1. Light standards shall be located on one side of the roadway only or shall be located opposite
each other when placed along both sides of the roadway.

Staggered spacing will be allowed upon approval of the City Engineer where there is an
established staggered pattern and it is necessary to continue this patter, or when site or safety
conditions prevent locating luminaires on only one side of the roadway.

2. In areas where the street width differs from the City standard, or there are other factors
influencing the location of the street lights, the City Engineer will provide input to the applicant
on acceptable options.

Street Light poles shall be direct buried as specified by PSE Line loss calculations shall show
that no more than a 5 percent voltage drop occurs in any circuits.  Branch circuits shall serve a
minimum of four luminaires.

Conductors:  Conductor size will be determined by the wattage and circuit lengths provided
through the IES design.  The minimum wire size for any illumination circuit shall be No. 6
Aluminum.  No. 10 wire will be acceptable for the pole and bracket cable within the light
standard only.



POLICY FOR PRIVATE SECURITY LIGHTING 

I. Policy Objective
A. The objective of this policy is to guide homeowners with the understanding of private

security lighting and the costs associated with owning those lights.

II. Private Security Lighting
A. Request for private security lighting shall be made directly to Puget Sound Energy, by the

property owner.
B. Installation of lighting shall be located on homeowner’s property, and not in the street right-

of-way.
C. Installation will not occur on City owned poles, trees or any other objects in right-of-ways.
D. Costs associated with installation shall be the responsibility of the property owner.
E. Monthly/annual or any other costs associated with the lighting on private property shall

remain the responsibly of the property owner for the existence of the light.
F. All maintenance and its costs associated with the lighting shall be the responsibility of the

property owner.
G. If current property owner should sell his/her property, all monthly/annual or maintenance

costs shall be the responsibility of the new property owner.

III. Building Standards
A. Private security lighting can come in many different forms.  If a property owner wishes to

install light poles near the right-of-way or on their property with in the street, then there are
building standards to follow.  Please visit www.cityoforting.org to review these building
standards.

B. Property owners are advised to call the locate notification center prior to digging for utility
locates.  (800) 424-5555.

C. Flood lights or additional security can be mounted to any building that provides adequate and
safe electrical connection as deemed by Puget Sound Energy, as longs as it’s on the
homeowners property.

IV. Orting Municipal Code
A. Property owners who wish to install private security lighting shall follow the guidelines of

the Orting Municipal Code and not create a nuisance.
B. Lighting shall not be set towards the direction of his/her neighbors and create a nuisance.
C. Lighting shall not be set in the direction of motor vehicles/drivers and cause unsafe driving

conditions.

http://www.cityoforting.org/


CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-968 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING; 
REZONING PARCEL NO. 0519311093; AMENDING 
ORTING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 13-3-4: ZONING 
MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS on May 4, 2015, a public hearing was conducted before the Planning 
Commission regarding Applicant, American Concrete’s request for rezoning of Pierce County 
tax Parcel No. 0519311093 from Residential Urban to Residential Multi-Family, Corliss Rezone 
2015-1;  and  

WHEREAS on June 2, 2015, the Planning Commission issued a written recommendation 
of denial to the City Council regarding the Corliss Rezone 2015-1 (the “Recommendation”); and  

WHEREAS on June 12, 2015, American Concrete filed a written response to the 
Planning Commission’s Recommendation; and 

WHEREAS the City Council conducted a closed record hearing on June 24, 2015, on the 
Corliss Rezone 2015-1, in which the Council reviewed the record before the Planning 
Commission for the Corliss Rezone 2015-1 and the City Planner and Applicant testified before 
the Council; and 

WHEREAS the City Council agreed to approve rezoning Parcel No: 0519311093 from 
Residential Urban to Residential Multi-Family with the condition that the parcel be developed 
with detached single family dwellings only; and  

WHEREAS the City Council found that the rezoning request for Parcel No:  0519311093 
was consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 

Section 1.  Incorporation of Recitals.  The above stated recitals are incorporated as 
though fully set forth herein.    

Section 2.  Grant of Rezone.   The City Council approves rezoning Parcel No: 
0519311093, legally described in the attached Exhibit A (the “Property), from Residential Urban 
to Residential Multi-Family subject to the following:  



 
1. The Property shall be developed with detached single family dwellings only, unless 

this condition is later amended by ordinance of the City Council.   
 

2. The rezone shall become effective only if the City Council passes an amendment to 
the land use designation of the Property from Residential Urban to Residential 
Multifamily by December 31, 2015.   

 
Section 3.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication. 
 

 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
ON THE 8TH  DAY OF JULY 2015. 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
     
Joe Pestinger, Mayor 

 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
     
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
     
John P. Long, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 7/8/2015 
Passed by the City Council: 7/8/2015 
Ordinance No. 2015-968 
Date of Publication: 7/10/2015 
Effective Date: 7/15/2015 







 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                     

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 18, 2015 
To: Mayor Joachim Pestinger; Orting City Council 

From: BHC Consultants 

CC: Mark Bethune, City Administrator 

Subject: 2015 Comprehensive Plan – Final Draft for Amendment 

 

This memo presents revisions made to the draft 2015 Comprehensive Plan in response to 
recommendations and comments received from Council and State agencies since the Open 
Record Public Hearing on June 10, 2015.  These revisions do not address goals and policies, 
but rather update the data and analyses presented in the supporting appendices.  These 
revisions have been incorporated into the draft Plan previously reviewed by Council, and 
together represent the final draft Plan for adoption. 

The following is a generalized summary of the additional substantial revisions.  Minor text and 
formatting edits are not included here, but have been revised as recommended.  

Introduction 

• A new bullet has been added under “Plan Summary” discussing that even though the 
role of the Plan to guide growth between 2015 and 2035, the stated planning horizon is 
2030.  It is explained that this is due to Pierce Countywide Planning Policies establishing 
targets for that year.   

• Discussion of the City’s participation in hazards mitigation planning has been added 
under the Land Use Element summary. 

Land Use 

• Discussion of the discrepancies between the Plan’s 2035 horizon and the Pierce County 
2030 targets has been added under the “Population and Employment Targets” section. 

Capital Facilities  

• Discussion of need for maintenance and repair facilities, and potential future 
collaboration with the Orting School District for joint use facilities, has been added.  

• Water system demand projections and water storage capacity discussions have been 
updated. 

• Sewer system demand projections, service capacity and future wastewater flows 
discussions have been updated.  Tables reflecting capacity have been added. 

• The Eldredge Avenue Sewer Rehabilitation Project has been added to the 20-Year 
Capital Facilities Plan.  

 

Page 1 of 2 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                     
 
Transportation 

• Text has been included addressing the fact that the data, analyses, and conclusions are 
based on an earlier City Transportation Plan, but that the conclusions are still valid.  It is 
mentioned that the City of Orting is set to update their Transportation Plan within the 
next two years to be consistent with the PSRC 2040 Plan, the Pierce County 
Transportation Plan and state highway plans, this would include updated traffic 
forecasting and volume data. 

• A section titled “Public Transit” has been added under “Other Modes”.  It addresses 
Sound Transit commuter rail service to nearby communities.  

• Figure T-3: Non-Motorized Facilities depicting the non-motorized facilities within Orting 
City limits has been added.  Under the “Non-Motorized Facilities” section, text has been 
added indicating that aside from the Foothills Trail, no other non- motorized facilities 
besides sidewalks have been dedicated in Orting. 

• A bulleted list identifying key projects in the currently adopted 6-Year Transportation 
Improvement Plan has been added.  

• The roadway nomenclature has been revised for consistency throughout. 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 2 BHC Consultants, LLC 
July 2, 2015   Q:\forms\BHC General Forms\BHC Memo.doc 



CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-967 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING; 
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, as required by the Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW), the 
City adopted a comprehensive plan for the community on November 29, 2004, (the 
“Comprehensive Plan”), which is updated frequently; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council on October 30, 2003, adopted Ordinance No. 778 which 
adopted substantive and procedural guidelines for amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and 
development regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, in October 2013, the City initiated review of the Comprehensive Plan to 

consider plan elements that require updating and offered to consider amendment proposals from 
citizens; and 

 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to adopt the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments was sent to the State of Washington Department of 
Commerce and to other state agencies with acknowledgement by the Department on April 14, 
2015, to allow for a 60-day review and comment period; and 

 
WHEREAS, an environmental review of the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments 

has been conducted in accordance with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act 
(“SEPA”), and a SEPA threshold determination of non-significance was issued on March 25, 
2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the public process for the proposed amendments has provided for early and 

continuous public participation opportunities including Planning Commission workshops from 
October 2013 to May 2015, the May 4, 2015 Planning Commission public hearing, and the June 
10, 2015 City Council public hearing.  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after considering the public comment received 

and other information presented at the public hearings and public meetings, including the 
documents identified in the exhibit list, voted after its May 4, 2015, public hearing to recommend 
to the City Council adoption of the proposed amendments to the  Comprehensive Plan, and 

 



WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, a public hearing was held before the City Council to take 
public testimony regarding the proposed amendments including the above described requested 
changes; and 
 

WHEREAS, having considered, among other things, the public testimony, the minutes of 
the Planning Commission meetings, the preliminary and final staff reports, and the Planning 
Commission recommendations, the City Council finds that the proposed amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan are consistent with and would serve to further implement the planning goals 
of the adopted Comprehensive Plan and the Growth Management Act;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 
 

Section 1.  Incorporation of Recitals.  The above stated recitals are incorporated as 
though fully set forth herein.    

 
Section 2.  Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations Adopted.  The “Findings and 

Planning Commission’s Recommendations” report for the Amendments to the City of Orting 
2015 Comprehensive Plan, as amended, and dated May 4, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” 
is incorporated herein by this reference and hereby adopted.   

 
Section 3.  Designation of Pierce County Parcel No: 0519311093.   A closed record 

hearing on Pierce County Parcel No: 0519311093 was held before the City Council on June 24, 
2015.  The City Council granted a rezoning of that parcel with conditions on that date.  
Designation of this parcel will be shown as RMF in Figure LU-1 Future Land Use Map.   

 
Section 4  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 5  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication. 
 

 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
ON THE 8TH DAY OF JULY 2015. 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
     
Joe Pestinger, Mayor 

 
  



ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
     
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
     
John P. Long, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 7/8/2015 
Passed by the City Council: 7/8/2015 
Ordinance No. 2015-967 
Date of Publication: 7/10/2015 
Effective Date: 7/15/2015 



Exhibit A 
2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

 
Comprehensive Plan Chapter Summary of Proposed Amendments 

Introduction Update of the “public process and visioning” section 

Update of the element summaries 

Update of the amendment process 

Clarification of the 2035 plan horizon within the context 

of Pierce Countywide Planning Policy population and 

employment targets  

 

Land Use Element Designation of the Center of Local Importance 

New Goal LU 14 and associated policies regarding Urban 

Agriculture 

Transportation Element Clarification of transportation Level of Service Standards 

Correction of street nomenclature 

Capital Facilities Element Amendment of Park, Trail and Open Space section 

consistent with the 2015 Park, Trail and Open Space Plan 

update 

Minor edits 

Economic Development 

Element 

Amendment to Goal ED 8 to strengthen intent to 

promote tourism 

Amendment to Goal ED 9 to promote regional expansion 

of opportunities for agricultural activities 

Land Use Appendix Updated population, land use and land capacity 

information and forecasts 

Increased information on natural hazards mitigation and 

mapping 

Transportation Appendix Minor updating to the Appendix to reflect the recent 

improvements and anticipated future projects.  

Capital Facilities Appendix Updates to current inventories, functional plan 

consistency for water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater, 

Schools & Libraries, Parks Plan Update, Police & Fire, and 



20-Year Capital Facility Needs 

 



Carbon River

Puyallup River

Puyallup River

VARNER AV SE

KANSAS ST SW

ELDREDGE AV
NW

HARMAN
WY S

DEEDED LN SW

LE
BER ST

NE

RIDDELL AV NE

OR
VI

LL
E R

D 
E

CALI
STO

GA ST W

CALISTOGAST E

OLD PIONEER WY NW

NUNNALLY AV
NW

WILLIAMSSTNW

168TH ST E

149TH STCT E

WILLIAMS BLVD NW

BURR ST NE

WASHINGTON AV N

HARDTKE AV NE

ORTING KAPOWSIN HWY E

BE
CKE

TT
 LN

 SW

MAZZA ST NE

WASHINGTON AV SE

PALMER LN SE

LEACH RD E

SKINNER WY SW

156TH AV E

156TH ST E

SASAKI LN SW

NO
BL

E 
LN

 S
W

SR162 E

PIONEER WY E

200TH ST E

202ND ST E

BUTTES DRE

184TH ST E

ALBERT BELL RD E

17
8T

H
AV

E

188TH ST E

148TH
AVCT E

WILL
OW

ST
SW

MI
LL

AV
SE

GRINNELL
AV

SW

15
0T

H
A V

E

197TH
ST

E

HANSBERRY AV
NE

147TH
AV E

PHOENIX AV SW

ORTING AV NW

16
2N

D
AV

E

152NDAV E

15
9T

H AV
E

Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Map

FIGURE LU-1

Zoning data supplied by the City. Base data supplied by 
Pierce County, and may not reflect actual or current 
conditions.  This map is a geographic representation 
based on information available. It does not represent 
survey data.  No warranty is made concerning the 
accuracy, currency, or completeness of data depicted 
on this map.
MAP DATE: June 2015

Legend
City Boundary
Parcels
Mixed Use - Town Center
Mixed Use -Town Center North
Light Manufacturing
Public Facilities
Residential - Multi-Family
Residential - Urban
Residential - Urban Low
Residential - Conservation
Open Space & Recreation
Water Bodies

BHC Consultants, LLC
1601 Fif th Avenue, Suite 500
Seattle,  Washington 98101
206.505.3400
www.bhcconsultants.com

¯

0 0.5
Miles



 

 
 

 
City of Orting 
City Council Staff Report 

 
Date: 

 
July 8, 2015 

 
Prepared By: 

 
Mark Bethune 

 
Agenda Item: 

 
Police Officer staffing increase – financial considerations 

  

 
 

Issue Synopsis: 
The Council is considering increasing the number of police officers 

 
Background: 

  The current financial resources available to the city will not support the 
hiring of another police officer.  The Public Safety Committee has been 
researching revenue strategies that support increasing the number of officers 
by one to three more than current staffing.  The City Councilmembers have 
voiced a desire that any increase in taxes or fees be put to a vote of the 
citizens. 

 
Policy Options: 

Approve, amend, deny 

 
Analysis: 

 See attached financial analysis.  The City is limited in its taxing authority to 
1) Property Tax levy increase, 2) B&O Taxes on power and communications, 
3) B&O tax on business, 4) Utility taxes on Water, Wastewater, Stormwater 
and garbage services.  If council desires to take a tax increase to a vote in 
November, the plan must be forwarded to the County Auditor by August 4th.   

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fund(s): General Fund 

  
Expenditure Required: NA for 2015.  There will be no increase in election 
expense due to Councilmember races. 

  
Amount Budgeted: NA for 2015 

  
Additional Appropriation Required: NA for 2015 

 
Policy Questions: 

See above 

Staff 
Recommendation: 

None 

Recommendation: None 

 
Attachments: 

Financial Analysis of revenue sources, police staffing comparables with other 
cities, tax comparables with other cities. 

 



Financial Considerations to Increase the Police Department Staffing 
 

• Consider increase from 11.00 officers to 14 officers. 
• Increase the Police Clerk from .75 time to full time. 
• Cost per officer including all incidentals is approximately $124,000. 
• Additional cost of the Police Clerk is $11,000. 

 
Proposal 1: 11 to 12 officers: $124,000 - $10,000 in OT = $114,000 additional expense 

Proposal 2: 11 to 13 officers: $248,000 + $11,000 = $259,000 - $20,000 OT = $239,000 additional Expense 

Proposal 3: 11 to 14 officers: $372,000 + 11,000 = 321,000 - $30,000 OT = $353,000 additional expense 

Regardless of how it is broken out or divided amongst the options below, the average Orting Citizen will have 
to pay $50/year more per new officer.  14 officers will cost the average citizen $140/year in some form of 
increased taxes. 
 

Types of Revenue Sources Allowable for Code Cities 

 1.  Property Tax levy lift 
 2.  B&O Tax on Power and Communication Services 
 3.  Utility Tax on Sewer, Water, and Stormwater 
 4.  Utility Tax on Garbage Services 
 
Financial Alternatives: 
 
Proposal 1: Increase officers from 11 to 12. 

1. Property Tax Lid Lift – Requires Election 
Increase 2015 rate of $1.60/1000 to $1.84/1000 
Home assessed at $200,000 will pay an annual increase of approx. $50 
Net Revenue = $115,000 

 
2. B&O Tax on Communications and Power – Requires an Election 

Increase tax rate from 6% to 7.4% 
Average annual increase per household is approx. $50 or $4/month 
Net Revenue = $115,000 
 

3. Utility Tax  - by Council action or election 
Tax Water, Sewer and Stormwater rates at 4% 
Increase annual utility bills approx. $50 or $4/month 
Net Revenue = $115,000 

    
4.    Garbage Service Utility Tax – by Council action or election 
  Tax Garbage service 17% 
  Increases the average home owner bill $4/month or about $50 annually 
  Net Revenue = $115,000 
 
 
 



Proposal 2:  Increase Officers from 11 to 13 
 
1.  Property Tax Lid Lift – Requires Election 

Increase 2015 rate of $1.60/1000 to $2.10/1000 
Home assessed at $200,000 will pay an annual increase of approx. $100 
Net Revenue = $240,000 

 
2. B&O Tax on Communications and Power – Requires an Election 

Increase tax rate from 6% to 8.6% 
Average annual increase per household is approx. $100 or $8/month 
Net Revenue = $240,000 
 

3.  Utility Tax  - by Council action or election 
Tax Water, Sewer and Stormwater rates at 8% 
Increase annual utility bills approx. $100 or $8/month 
Net Revenue = $240,000 

 
4.    Garbage Service Utility Tax – by Council action or election 
  Tax Garbage service 34% 
  Increases the average home owner bill $8/month or about $100 annually 
  Net Revenue = $240,000 
 
Proposal 3:  Increase Officers from 11 to 14 
 
1.  Property Tax Lid Lift – Requires Election 

Increase 2015 rate of $1.60/1000 to $2.30/1000 
Home assessed at $200,000 will pay an annual increase of approx. $140 
Net Revenue = $350,000 

 
2. B&O Tax on Communications and Power – Requires an Election 

Increase tax rate from 6% to 11.2% 
Average annual increase per household is approx. $140 or $11.65/month 
Net Revenue = $350,000 
 

3.  Utility Tax  - by Council action or election 
Tax Water, Sewer and Stormwater rates at 11.4% 
Increase annual utility bills approx. $140 or $11.65/month 
Net Revenue = $350,000 

 
4.    Garbage Service Tax – by Council action or election 
  Tax Garbage service 50% 
  Increases the average home owner bill $11.65/month or about $140 annually 
  Net Revenue = $350,000 
 
New Alternative – divide evenly amongst the 4 taxing strategies = $350,000/Yr 
 
1.  Property Tax – increase from 1.60/1000 to 1.78/1000 = $35/yr 
2.  B&O Tax on Communications and Power: increase tax from current 6% to 7.3% = $2.91/mo. 
3.  Utility Tax: increase from 0 to 3% = $2.91/month 
4.  Garbage Franchise Fee – from 0 to 12.5% = $2.91/month 



POLICE COMPARABLES

Police Comparables 2014 Rev Beginning Total Police Police % of Police % of Police Percent of 
City Population Valuation General Fund GF Reserve Less Fire** FTE's FTE's Total FTE GenFundFTE's Budget General fund
Yelm 7,470 567,993,293 $4,453,000 $2,100,000 No 47 12 26% $1,595,574 36%
Milton 7,185 583,971,779 $3,733,957 $725,676 No 41 12 29% $1,827,172 49%
Duval 7,120 699,978,432 $4,253,686 $1,386,643 No 43 12 28% $2,256,484 53%
Orting 6,930 378,099,092 $2,840,000 $1,801,000 No 34 11 32% 68% $1,637,000 58%
Pacific 6,760 525,337,117 $3,250,000 $950,000 No 27 10 37% $2,057,000 63%
Fircrest 6,540 569,373,361 $3,810,673 $3,765,000 Yes 32 9 28% $1,425,456 37%
Steilacoom 6,040 591,241,028 $4,367,533 $4,097,784 Yes 44 9 20% $1,749,692 40%
Buckley* 4,370 318,871,406 3,700,000 $6,200,000 Yes/Vol 34 9 26% $1,565,816 42%
Black Diamond 4,170 $499,715,546 $4,670,852 $671,787 Yes 29 9 31% $1,632,382 35%
Average 6,287 526,064,562 $3,897,745 $2,410,877 NA 37 10 29% $1,749,620 45%
*General Fund Revenue does not include sale of Natural Gas facility for $5.4 million which will go to the general fund
** If the City received funding and had expenses for Fire/EMS these amounts were subtracted out of the general fund revenue expected for 2014.

Comparables
Orting Comparison to the average of the comparable cities
Population: 9% higher 
Valuation 28% Lower
General Fund Revenue 25% Lower
General Fund Reserves 25% Lower
FTE's 8% Lower
Police FTE's Average
Police Budget 6.5% Lower
Police Budget as % of Revenue 21% Higher
Police Pay Step 1 6.5% Lower
Police Pay Top 11% Lower

0

100,000,000

200,000,000

300,000,000

400,000,000

500,000,000

600,000,000

700,000,000

800,000,000 City Assessed Property Valuation

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Police Expense as a % of General Fund

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

3500000

4000000

4500000

5000000

General Fund Annual Revenue 2014



City Valuation
Yelm 567,993,293
Milton 583,971,779
Duval 699,978,432
Orting 378,099,092
Pacific 525,337,117
Fircrest 569,373,361
Steilacoom 591,241,028
Buckley 318,871,406
Black Diamond $499,715,546

0

100,000,000

200,000,000

300,000,000

400,000,000

500,000,000

600,000,000

700,000,000

800,000,000

Yelm Milton Duval Orting Pacific Fircrest Steilacoom Buckley Black Diamond

City Assessed Property Valuation



 d



 

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

3500000

4000000

4500000

5000000

City Yelm Milton Duval Orting Pacific Fircrest Steilacoom Buckley** Black Diamond

General Fund Annual Revenue 2014



2014 Rev
City Gen Fund
Yelm $4,453,000
Milton $3,733,957
Duval $4,253,686
Orting $2,905,000
Pacific $3,250,000
Fircrest $3,810,673
Steilacoom $4,367,533
Buckley** 3,700,000
Black Diamon $4,670,852



City % of GF
Yelm 36%
Milton 49%
Duval 53%
Orting 60%
Pacific 63%
Fircrest 37%
Steilacoom 40%
Buckley 31%
Black Diamond 35%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Yelm Milton Duval Orting Pacific Fircrest Steilacoom Buckley Black Diamond

Police Expense as a % of General Fund



Cable
Rate Rate Rate Rate

Bonney Lake 6% 6% 6% 6.50% 6% 8% 8% 8%
Milton 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6%
Orting 6% 6% 6% 6% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Puyallup 5% 5% 6% 3.80% 8% 8% 8% 8%
Sumner 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% No 6% 6% 6% 6%
Tacoma 6% 6% 6% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%
Steilacoom 6% 6% 6% 5% 6% 6% 6% 6%

Utility Tax Rates
Association of Washington Cities - 2010 Tax and User Fee Survey

Garbage Water Sewer StormCity Name Natural Gas Electricity TeleCom



Property Tax Rates for Regional Cities - 2015
City City Rate/$1000 Total Rate/$1000
Orting $1.60 $17.86
Puyallup $1.81 14.00
Sumner $0.61 $13.79
Bonney Lake $1.54 $14.71
Milton $1.60 $13.50
Buckley $2.43 $16.15
Average $1.60 $15.00



 

 
 

 
City of Orting 
City Council Staff Report 

 
Date: 

 
June 5, 2015 

 
Prepared By: 

 
Laura Hinds 

 
Agenda Item: 

 
Cleaning of   1,171 Catch Basins 

  

 
Issue Synopsis: 

According to the Phase II NPDES Storm Water Permit, the City is required to 
have its catch basins cleaned with a high pressure vac system every five years. 

 
Background: 

In 2009 and 2010, all of the City Center, surrounding residential streets and 
sub-divisions were cleaned.  The catch basins to be cleaned will include Type 
1 & Type 2 basins.  The intent of catch basin cleaning is to remove foreign 
materials from the basins to facilitate a free flow of storm water. 
Decant will occur at City WWTP.  Solids will be dumped at City Waste 
Handling Facility (bins) to dry, then dispose of by City crew & vehicles. 

 
Policy Options: 

Move forward with storm line cleaning to stay in compliance with the NPDES 
permit.  

 
Analysis: 

 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 
BARS number: 410.538.38.48.02 R&M Vac Storm System 

  
Expenditure Required: 24,979.17 

  
Amount Budgeted: $20,000 

  
Additional Appropriation Required: $4,979.17 
 

 
Policy Questions: 

N/A 

 
Staff 

Recommendation: 

 
Recommend Approval 

Committee 
Recommendation: 

N/A 

 
Attachments: 

 
Bid Summary 

 



 2015 Catch Basin Cleaning

Company
Schedule 1

 (Complete CB Inventory)
Schedule 2

(half CB Inventory)

Pipe Line Video & Cleaning $24,979.17 $12,951.01

Pro Vac $37,165.81 $17,835.32

Drain Pro $60,889.92 $25,627.84

Budget $20,000

NPDES Phase II requirement
Includes 8.8% sales tax



 

 
 

 
City of Orting 
City Council Staff Report 

 
Date: 

 
July 2, 2015 

 
Prepared By: 

 
Mark Bethune 

 
Agenda Item: 

 
DM Disposal – Amended Franchise Agreement, Increased Rates 

  

 
 

Issue Synopsis: 
DM Disposal alerted the City about a year ago that it would purchase and 
mobilize new trucks that can pick up garbage carts and that it would provide 
new complementary carts to citizens that are amenable to the trucks.  They are 
ready to begin the service.  They desire an increased garbage rate was well as 
an extended franchise agreement. 

 
Background: 

See above 

 
Policy Options: 

Adopt/reject/amend the franchise amendment.  

 
Analysis: 

DM proposes a fee increase affective November 1, 2015 of about 2% a month.  
This would be about a 61 cent monthly increase for the standard can.  DM 
requests the franchise agreement be extended to 2022 to help them recoup the 
expenses for the new trucks and equipment. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fund(s): NA 

  
Expenditure Required: NA 

  
Amount Budgeted: NA 

  
Additional Appropriation Required: NA 
 

 
Policy Questions: 

NA 

 
Staff 

Recommendation: 

Approve  

Utility Committee 
Recommendation: 

Approve  

 
Attachments: 

Rate sheet, resolution, amended franchise 

 



CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO.  2015-9  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 

WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER 
INTO THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ORTING AND 
D.M. DISPOSAL CO., INC. FOR WASTE COLLECTION 
SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 1, 2012, the City and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc. entered into that 
certain Franchise Agreement Between the City of Orting and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc., as 
subsequently modified, amended, and/or extended (the “Agreement”), for the collection, 
transportation, and disposal of all residential Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Yard Debris, 
and Bulky Goods, and all Commercial Solid Waste generated, deposited, accumulated, or 
otherwise coming to exist in the Franchise Area within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc. wish to amend the Agreement to 
extend the term thereof, to modify the nature of the services provided by Franchisee, to increase 
the disposal rates and to otherwise modify the Agreement as provided for herein; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into the First Amendment to Franchise 
Agreement between the City of Orting and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc., in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, with attachment. 
 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 
8TH DAY OF JULY, 2015. 
 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 



 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend, PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 7/8/2015 
Passed by the City Council: 7/8/2015 
Resolution No.: 2015-9 
 



City of Orting

PO Box 489

Orting  WA  98360

EXHIBIT - A - 11/1/2015

Can Service: 3/1/2015 11/1/2015 % Change Rate Change

Number of 

Subscribers

Micro Can - 10gallon Cart 12.65 12.90   per month 1.98% 0.25 41

Mini Can - 20gallon Cart 17.03 17.37   per month 2.00% 0.34 34

One Can - 32gallon Cart 20.63 21.12   per month 2.38% 0.49 1646

Two Can - 64gallon Cart 32.25 32.86   per month 1.89% 0.61 421

Three Can - 96gallon Cart 43.87 44.52   per month 1.48% 0.65 20

Packout/Drive-in 9.23 9.23   per month 0.00% 0.00 11

Occasional extra 5.70 5.70   per unit 0.00% 0.00

Return trip 7.06 7.06   per trip 0.00% 0.00

Container Service:

1 yard once a week 91.90 91.90   per month 0.00% 0.00

1 yard twice a week 176.64 176.64   per month 0.00% 0.00

1.5 yard once a week 124.85 124.85   per month 0.00% 0.00

1.5 yard twice a week 246.69 246.69   per month 0.00% 0.00

2 yard once a week 161.36 161.36   per month 0.00% 0.00

2 yard twice a week 313.38 313.38   per month 0.00% 0.00

2 yard three times a week 470.99 470.99   per month 0.00% 0.00

4 yard once a week 303.83 303.83   per month 0.00% 0.00

4 yard twice a week 600.39 600.39   per month 0.00% 0.00

4 yard three times a week 897.01 897.01   per month 0.00% 0.00

6 yard once a week 432.16 432.16   per month 0.00% 0.00

6 yard twice a week 854.38 854.38   per month 0.00% 0.00

6 yard three times a week 1,276.62 1,276.62   per month 0.00% 0.00

6 yard Five times a week 2,076.44 2,076.44   per month 0.00% 0.00

4 yard compactor once a week 5:1 1,294.21 1,294.21   per month 0.00% 0.00

1 yard extra on  regular route 21.70 21.70   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

1.5 yard extra on regular route 29.32 29.32   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

2 yard extra on regular route 37.73 37.73   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

4 yard extra on regular route 70.92 70.92   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

6 yard extra on regular route 100.78 100.78   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

4 yard compactor extra regular route 5:1 299.21 299.21   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

Bulky Extra on route 13.71 13.71   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

Connect/Reconnect 11.32 11.32   per unit 0.00% 0.00

Yard Waste 90-gal toter 5.11 5.11   per month 0.00% 0.00

Occasional extra yard waste 2.45 2.45   per pickup 0.00% 0.00

MF-Recycling 4.27 4.27   per month 0.00% 0.00

Redeliver Cart 15.25 15.25 per delivery 0.00% 0.00

Additional Recycling Cart 6.50 6.50 per month 0.00% 0.00



FIRST AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF ORTING AND D.M. DISPOSAL CO., INC. 

This First Amendment to Franchise Agreement Between the City of Orting and D.M. 
Disposal Co., Inc. (this “Amendment”), is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Orting, a Washington municipal corporation (the “City”), and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc., a 
Washington corporation (“Franchisee”).  The City and Franchisee may be collectively referred to 
herein as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party,” unless specifically identified otherwise.  
This Amendment shall be effective upon the Effective Date as defined below.  All capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement (as 
defined below). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2012, the Parties entered into that certain Franchise Agreement 
Between the City of Orting and D.M. Disposal Co., Inc., as subsequently modified, amended, 
and/or extended (the “Agreement”), for the collection, transportation, and disposal of all 
residential Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Yard Debris, and Bulky Goods, and all 
Commercial Solid Waste generated, deposited, accumulated, or otherwise coming to exist in the 
Franchise Area within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to extend the term thereof, to 
modify the nature of the services provided by Franchisee, and to otherwise modify the 
Agreement as provided for herein. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein, the Parties mutually agree, represent, and warrant as follows: 

1. Amendment to Section 3 of the Agreement.  Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following 

3. TERM OF FRANCHISE. 

 The initial term of this Franchise shall commence on the Effective 
Date as set forth in Section 4.3 and, unless sooner terminated in 
accordance with the provision of this Franchise, shall expire on July 31, 
2022 (the “Initial Term”).  Upon expiration of the Initial Term, this 
Agreement shall automatically renew for one (1) additional two (2) year 
period under the same terms and conditions hereof, unless the City 
determines, in its reasonable discretion, that Franchisee is providing 
inadequate or insufficient services to customers, in breach of the terms and 
conditions hereof; provided, that Franchisee shall have thirty (30) days to 
cure said breach after receiving written notice from the City.  
Additionally, this Franchise may, upon the mutual written consent of the 
City and Franchisee, be extended for a mutually agreed upon term, in 
order to facilitate changes associated with the implementation of new 



technology not required by this Franchise, or changes in service level or 
frequency that improve the efficiencies and levels of service provided 
herein, or any other improvements desired by the City. 

2. Amendment to Section 5.1 of the Agreement.  Section 5.1 of the Agreement is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 5.1 Residential Collection Services.  Franchisee shall 
furnish all labor, supervision, materials, supplies, equipment and 
all other items required to collect and dispose of all Garbage, and, 
for those residential customers that have signed up for collection of 
Recyclable Materials and Yard Debris, to collect and handle all 
Recyclable Materials and Yard Debris generated or accumulated 
from residential premises within the Franchise Area.  The work to 
be done by Franchisee as set forth in this Franchise shall be 
accomplished in a professional manner so that the residents within 
the Franchise Area are provided reliable, courteous, and high-
quality collection of Solid Waste. 

3. Amendment to Section 5.6 of the Agreement.  Section 5.6 of the Agreement is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 5.6 Cart Service.  All Residential Customers that sign 
up for collection of Garbage, Recyclable Materials, and Yard 
Debris shall use Franchisee-owned Garbage Carts, Recycling 
Carts, and Yard Debris Carts, which shall serve as their primary 
Containers for Garbage, Recyclables, and Yard Debris.  Plastic 
bags may be used for overflow volumes of Garbage as allowed 
under the Orting Municipal Code, but not as a Customer’s primary 
Container.  Commercial Customers shall be provided Franchisee-
owned Containers for Solid Waste collection, depending upon the 
level of service.  All Containers provided by Franchisee shall 
remain the property of Franchisee.  Customers shall not overfill 
Containers, and material that does not fit neatly within a Container 
may be subject to additional fees, as set forth in Exhibit A.  The 
Franchisee is responsible for collection of all Containers that do 
not exceed the weight limits, described below: 

10-gallon Cart  15 lbs 

20-gallon Cart  30 lbs 

32-gallon Cart  45 lbs 

64-gallon Cart  90 lbs 

Page 2 of 4 
 



95-gallon Cart  135 lbs 

If a Container exceeds the weight limits set forth in this Section, 
the Franchisee may refuse service and shall tag the overweight 
Container.  If service can be safely provided, the Franchisee shall 
charge the equivalent extra bag charge.  The Franchisee shall work 
with Customers to provide alternatives so that future service will 
not be disrupted.  Replacement Containers may be subject to a fee 
as set forth in Exhibit A. 

4. Amendment to Exhibit A of the Agreement.  Exhibit A of the Agreement is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Exhibit A. 

5. Amendment to Section 25 of the Agreement.  Franchisee’s notice provisions are 
updated as follows: 

Franchisee’s address:   D.M. Disposal Co., Inc. 
4622 70th Avenue East 
Fife, WA  98424 
Attention:  District Manager 

With a copy to:  Waste Connections, Inc. 
3 Waterway Square Place, Suite 110 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
Attention:  Legal Department 

6. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more facsimile or 
original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and both of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

7. Ratification.  All terms and provisions of the Agreement not amended hereby, 
either expressly or by necessary implication, shall remain in full force and effect.  From and after 
the date of this Amendment, all references to the term “Agreement” in this Amendment and/or in 
the Agreement shall include the terms contained in this Amendment. 

8. Conflicting Provisions.  In the event of any conflict between the terms of the 
Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall prevail. 

9. Effective Date.  The Effective Date of this Amendment shall be August 1, 2015. 

 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.) 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties enter into this Amendment.  Each person signing 
this Amendment represents and warrants that he or she has been duly authorized to enter into this 
Amendment by the Party on whose behalf it is indicated that the person is signing. 

 
CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
By:       
Name: Joachim Pestinger 
Title: Mayor 
Date:       

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 

 
D.M. DISPOSAL CO., INC. 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:       
Date:       

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      

 

Page 4 of 4 
 






























	Council Packet 7-8-15
	Council Agenda 7-8-15
	Council Minutes 6-24-15
	ConsentAgendaFinancial
	8b
	EmergencyEvacBridge
	EmergencyEvacBridgeScopeBudget

	8c
	Street Lighting_SR
	Street Lighting Request Policy

	8d
	Ordinance No. 2015-968, Zoning Change parcel 0519311093-revised 6-30-15
	ORDINANCE NO. 2015-968

	Legal Description

	8e
	6-24 Council Memo
	MEMORANDUM
	From: BHC Consultants

	2015 comp plan ordinance-revised - 6-25-15
	ORDINANCE NO. 2015-967

	Fig1_Comp_Plan_LU

	8f
	Police Staffing Increase - Financial Considerations
	Financial Considerations to Increase the Police Department Staffing
	Police Comparables 6.18.15 
	Comparables 
	Assessed Valuation
	General Fund 
	% GF

	City Tax Comparison B&O and Utility 4-3-15
	Sheet1

	Property Tax Comparison 7.1.14 
	Sheet1


	9a
	2015 CB CLeaning_SR
	2015 Catch basin cleaning bids
	Sheet1


	9b
	Staff Report_DM Disposal - Amended Franchise and Increased Rates
	Resolution No. 2015-9, Amendment to DM Disposal Co Franchise Agmt
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO.  2015-9
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
	John P. Long, Jr.

	DM New GarbageCarts - new rates
	Amendment to Franchise Agreement  DM Disposal Co


	additonsto070815councilpacket
	20150710092749317
	20150710092802482




